1078 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS
Complaint 120F.T.C.

IN THE MATTER OF

BLENHEIM EXPOSITIONS, INC.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3633. Complaint, Dec. 22, 1995--Decision, Dec. 22, 1995

This consent order prohibits, among other things, a Florida-based company, that
produces franchise trade shows and expositions, from misrepresenting the
sales, income or profits, or the success rate of franchise owners, unless it
possesses and relies upon competent and reliable scientific evidence to support
the claims. In addition, the respondent is prohibited from misrepresenting the
validity, results, contents, conclusions, or interpretations of any survey, test,
poll or study.

Appearances

For the Commission: Thomas Cohn, Eileen Harrington and Joan
Bernstein.

For the respondent: Elaine Johnston, White & Case, New York,
N.Y.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
as amended, 15 U.S.C. 41 et seq. ("FTC Act"), and by virtue of the
authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal Trade Commission
("FTC" or "Commission"), having reason to believe that Blenheim
Expositions, Inc., a corporation, ("respondent"), has violated certain
provisions of said Act, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest,
hereby issues its complaint stating its charges as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Blenheim Expositions, Inc. is a
Florida corporation with its office and principal place of business at
1133 Louisiana Avenue, Suite 210, Winter Park, Florida.

PAR. 2. At all times relevant to this complaint, respondent has
maintained a substantial course of business, including the acts and
practices set forth herein, in or affecting commerce, as "commerce"
is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 44.
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PAR. 3. Respondent has advertised, promoted, marketed, or
conducted franchise shows throughout the United States to promote
the sale of franchises and business opportunities to consumers.

PAR. 4. Respondent has disseminated or has caused to be
disseminated advertisements for franchise shows, including but not
necessarily limited to the advertisements attached as Exhibits A, B
and C. These advertisements contain the following statements:

A. "If you buy a franchise business, your chances of success are 94%! That's
a fact, according to a recent Gallup Poll, which found that 94% of the 994 franchise
owners polled considered their businesses successful.” (Exhibit A, ad #1)

B. "The poll also found that the average pre-tax income among franchise
owners is $124,290!" (Exhibit A, ad #1)

C. "[A]ccording to a recent Gallup Poll, 94% of franchise owners are
successful, averaging $124,290 in pre-tax profits . . . !" (Exhibit A, ad #2)

D. "According to a recent Gallup Poll, 94% of franchise owners are successful,
averaging $124,290 in pre-tax income . .. I" (Exhibit A, ad #3)

E. "A recent Gallup Poll revealed that 94% of franchise owners are successful,
that average pre-tax income is $124,290 . . . !" (Exhibit A, ad #4)

F. "If You Go Into Business For Yourself, Your Chances of Success are 94%
or 35%! WHICH WILL YOU CHOOSE? If you buy a Franchise Business, your
chances of success are 94%! THAT'S A FACT, according to a recent Gallup poll.
Conversely, it's estimated that only 35% of independent business start-ups survive
5 years." (Exhibit A, ad #5)

G. "The 1991 Gallup Poll revealed an average pre-tax income among
Franchises of $124,290 . . . ." (Exhibit A, ad #5)

H. "A recent Gallup Poll showed that 94 percent of franchise owners are
successful, with an average pre-tax profit of $124,290!" (Exhibit A, ad #6)

L. "A recent independent survey showed that franchise owners enjoy an
incredible 94 percent success rate and an average income of more than 124
thousand dollars.” (Exhibit B; television advertisement)

J. "A recent poll of 994 franchise owners showed a 94% success rate and an
average pre-tax income of over a hundred and twenty four thousand dollars."
(Exhibit C; radio advertisement)

A copy of the Gallup Poll referred to above is attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit D.

PAR. 5. Through the use of the statements contained in the
advertisements for franchise shows referred to in paragraph four,
including but not necessarily limited to the advertisements attached
as Exhibits A, B and C, respondent has represented, directly or by
implication, that:
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A. Franchise owners earn an average income and/or average pre-
tax income of more than $124,000;

B. Franchise owners earn an average pre-tax income and/or
average pre-tax profit of $124,290;

C. A prospective franchise owner's chances of success are 94%;

D. Franchise owners enjoy a 94% success rate;

E. Representations A through D were proved by a Gallup Poll of
franchise owners conducted in 1991.

PAR. 6. Through the use of the statements contained in the
advertisements referred to in paragraph four, including but not
necessarily limited to the advertisements attached as Exhibits A-C,
respondent has represented, directly or by implication, that at the time
it made representations A through D in paragraph five, respondent
possessed and relied upon a reasonable basis that substantiated such
representations.

PAR. 7. In truth and in fact, at the time it made representations A
through D in paragraph five, respondent did not possess and rely
upon a reasonable basis that substantiated such representations.
Therefore, the representation set forth in paragraph six was, and is,
faise and misleading.

PAR. 8. In truth and in fact, the Gallup Poll of franchise owners
conducted in 1991 does not prove representations A through D in
paragraph five, for reasons including but not limited to the following:

A. The poll participants were asked to report their annual gross
income before taxes, and were not asked to deduct business expenses;

B. The poll participants were drawn exclusively from a list of
current franchise owners, and no former franchise owners were
polled; and

C. The poll included a disproportionate number of owners of
multiple franchise locations.

Therefore, representation E in paragraph five was, and is, false and
misleading.

PAR. 9. The acts and practices of respondent as alleged in this
complaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or
affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 45(a).
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EXHIBIT A

Empire Drive. Florence. Ky 41042 1. i Services For Veterans frowtn  Assistance () : Snec
300-842-3G36. k lor ISBN N - Center and prosented hy WIT '+ -

Ask  lor No. | Vetfran s a nonprom greup that puts

0338073217. military personnel ard veterans in touch !

A book aimed at emerging and existing ; with franchisors. Contact Chariie Wood. *

[ranchisors is The Francaising Hand- | RO. Box 314G, Waco. Texas 76707: (S17)
book (AMACOM), edited by Andrew J. | 7531535,

Seminars For Women And Minoriles
Women in Frunchising (WIF) con-
. duets several seminars aimed at
introducing women and minorities
 to franchising. Scheduled seminars
aret [
B April 24: Washington, D.C. | s
This- all«lay frunchise-orientation | A:
“.geminar, presented by WIF and | be
sponsored hy the: US. Minority | ila
Business Development Agency, is | ru
B aimed at minority-group members. | Int
- It is free und will be held at the | is¢
- Washington, D.C.. Convention Cen- ]
ter.” All participants will receive | loes
tickets to the I[nternational. Fran- 1
chise Expo (see the list at right). | Inte
Founder Susan Kezios of the new Call 1-800-222-4947, B June 26-27: Pml-ulzlnma
Americun Fmincitizee Association 8 May 15: Chicugo. The linois ® July 31-Aug. 1: Dullas
~ Franchise Task Force sponsors a | M Aug. 14-15: San Francisco
workshep presented by WIF atthe | # Sept..11-12: Chicago
Sherman. Priced at $75, lhls resource : O'Hare Holiday Inn; 345 per person. For | B Oct. 30-31: Atlanta
bock is a colluborative eifort by Ieadmg , more information. call 1-800-222-4943. ] For more information, contact Blen-
franchise authorities on a wide range of | B May 1: Chicago. This is a three-hour | heim International Franchise Expos, Inc..
topies. To“order, contact AMACOM, 135 | introdustory seminar on franchising | 1133 Louisiana Ave.. Suite 210, Winter
West 50th St., New York. N.Y. 10020. + sponsared by the Minority Enterprise | Park. Fla. 32749; (407) G47-8521.°

Ao

Starting a SUCCESSFUL Busmess of Your Dwn
Isn't Just A Question of LUCK!

# you buy a iranciise ousiness. your chances of success are 94% That's 3 fact,
eccerding to a recent Gallup Poll, which tound that 94% of the §94 lrancnise
owners coiled considereq their businesses successful The poil also found that
‘he averzge pre-12x income amorg iranchise owners 1s $124.290! There are
amost 3,800 ocportunities to chocse irom in over 80 ciflerent industries, and
you don't need any prior experience! Start-up costs begin al well below $10,000,
and some can even be run from nome!

Trink ol it as buyig the 100 Gi vour thoice, AND being the bess!

So if you'd like ta receive free, no-obligation information about lranchising,
Iranchise opportunities. and the wortd’s largest franchise expo, call:

An=z
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EXHIBIT A

gy

thought about “Being 1 singie parent. | 3 “Myordodontic pracrice i} *Jobn and | shared 3 con- M eariv

nusing when | came 138 exaited abour making 3 docst’t alow me the time § rumise desire 10 owa our 2
monev wnie helping ami- foe hands-on involvement .o business and nurrre it waie insisted that [ o to tre
dren at the same ome. Now 3 with snother budoes [ inco0 2 highly successtl Franciue Expo. i never

.t 1radesiow. But one tung i wn my own ousiness iry i operation. TUTOR TIME intended to buy a Fancaisc.
< £ 4nocher and | invested. it 1 gooa 1ncome nd the $ad deveioped 2 unique 1 didn’t want 1o go (0 tre
+18.500 1n an FCI franciuse. ~PPOrTIRITY 10 be home for €ODCEPY N0 3 COMPcLE H3- Expo agd { didn’t wantio

Busness s 2nmsnc and the ¢ chaidren. My irestmert tem. using Cansteradle skils b in the prindng bustness.

: . . ¢ A " T i o P p

<urporate Dackup 18 absoiute- 7 Bime 3nd mency 135 been thoroughiy Bugiu 1o their Now I'm in busimess ior

v outstanding. | oniy wish venv profible - nght new Owdecsionto  myselfwith 3 ERANKLIN'S
et I"m prepanng 10 buv my own a TUTOR TIME PRINTING franchuse.

i'd Jone it sooner!”

. ) weond PRE-FIT fanciuse franchise was a choics made best rrove [ couid havt
- g_l” Wellings W 3 poraon of ¢ POREs with congdencs.”
anchisee. Som my drst” Ry,
FLOORCOVERINGS -~ [po i, Boadie Truscikes,
INTERNATIONAL Fran PRE-FIT TUTOR TIME FRANKLIN'S PRINTLNG

Shatever your reasons for wanting 2 successtil busmess ot yourawn. take a close [odk at the franchise option:
- Almost 3,000 separate franchise opportunities to choose from -
~ Only a handful require any previous experience -
- 70 different industry sectors -
- Start-up costs from under $10.000 to $1 million plus -
Many independent business start-u0s faii because oi ctstacies that could have been avoided. With a irancrise, you'll e

‘raineq In avoicing those oostacles and in enting maximum octentiai frem your Susiness. AND you'l get engeing supeen
for as long as you tun the business. Yau'll be in business FOR yourseif. but not BY yourself.

And now - according to a recent Gallup Poll, 4% of francnise owners are successiul.
3sveraging $124.290 in pre-tax profits. and 75% would choose the exact same business again!

If you woutd ke to receive 2 free, no-obligation brochure about franchising and the world's largest franchise expo.
teaturing aver 300 extubitors and a complete program of free seminars call toll-free (U.S. & Canada Only):
SPONSORED BY

=
o™
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EXHIBIT A

Look at what we'll be telling
MILLIONS OF PEOPLE

FHMIRYL  between now and the

The IFA
International
Franchise Expo
advertising
and promotion

choose

the exact same franchise again!

TR, There are almost 3000 franchise opportunities
” to choose from in almost 70 separate
industries!

= a1 g Start-up costs range from under $10.000 to
Ccmpolgn m over $1 million and only & handful require any
i1 o revious experience!

will impact previots &x

A IONS ~f TTT7 3, There will be more franchise opportunities at
MILLIONS o 1 h.iff’ the IFA INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE EXPO in

; ‘Washington D.C. on April 23-25. 1993 than have

people In ever before been gathered in one placa!

all 50 states
and over

,, Free information about the Expo is available by
¢ calling the International Franchise Expo 800
number hotline!

100 countries. THE SERIOUS BUYERS WILL BE THERE...

WILL YOU?

romsin 3
e
Far 3 sracnure. and ub-o-the-minule detaiis ¢ remaining Sccth space. £ail: :'
VIS
Crgrre”

4076478521 =
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EXHIBIT A

+ Kings Lsland, there ure more than 100
. including the fastest, iongest, baddest
aall coasterdom, the Beast. A suspended
:2f, Top Gun (Lused un the lue mivic)
icbue in April. Not for the fainteufehean,
-oaster will feature cars hanging under-
2 the mack racher than riding on top.
‘her Eavorite is the monorail ride through
Wild Animal Habitat, where livas,
fes, and elephanes play and rvam freely.
¢ than 54 million visitors have cxperi-
d chills and chrill: at this park sinex it
1ed in 1972,
ORE THRILLS ARE FOUND AT
CoNEY IsLAND, which fia-
3 3 200-by-400-foot pooi, the world's
est, cleanest, and brightest recirculadng
aming facility - plus miniture gulf, pic-
grounds, and children's rides. Kids love
Zoom Flume water slide and the 21"
er coaster.
Any disassion of Cincinnad is incomplete
“out a word on food. After all, it is known
he “Eadog Capial of the Midwest” A
at restauranc town, “it’s the unly stwp worth
cing between New York and San ran-
," ;a1 food gury Craig Chailme."ere's
g o suit every whin and every wailet -
 the Bve-star Maisorene to five-star chili.
arly 150 resaurants specialize in the ot

There are almost 3000_ ep oT

A, although Geld Sar Chili and Sivline ! s
the two big outless. At Skvline alone, more ; to ChOOSC &Om’ n 7@' “
766,000 pounds uf beet nd 40000 pounis | Start-up ¢osts begim
auld cheddar chese 5 wevi are uxu_ u?.nd ; a:ld Orllv a ha.ndfu-l reant
hear the secret nux consists of chocviate :

! dnnamen )

3o0b Hope's favorite nbs are served s
sntgomery lnn's Boathouse un the nver-
acand there's also Johmny Beneh's Hall of
me steaks ac the Previnet (i old poiice
oon). Whatever you du, dun't leave with-
tsampling Gracter's ice cream (mscaron,
conut, double chocolate dip), which is

no-obhgauon brochu:e about Franchise opg%mm

ipped all over the country,
Savoring Cincinnati... it can become o and the World’s Largest Franchise: F_*cpo,
bie g
L<+-<T O 1L L «F R:E E ™

Lilia F. rady 11 mumagung cartor of

. 1-800-IFE;INFO

Knowledge is'Power.
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NUCCENS SELECTNSCOUESS &

15. The company with Lhe strongest
product guaraniee in the industry
has now set new standards of excel-

lence with its award-winning
copiers. Buvers Laboratory Inc.. an
independent olfice producis testing
firm. has lauded Lanier’s compre-
hensive product line with its ~“Most
Qutstanding Copier Line of the
Year” award. Lanier has a copier to
fit vour exact needs. With more than
L.600 lncations in 80 countries.
Lanier's dedicated ser-
+ vice network is

j readv 1o ser- gy ”i

" sice vour hus- 2 B
iness. Call  TLINEo/owYEAR™
1.800.859.
2679 or cirdle no. 13.
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ALDVERTINEMENT

16. LifeTrends — For more informa-
tion on the half-dav diet and/or the
LifeTrends opportunity. call 1-800-
6885732 or circle no. 16.
17. American Leak Detection —
Unique franchise opportunity in elec-
tronic leak detection and repair of
concealed water and gas leaks. Protect-
ed territories still available. Financing
available OAC. Circle no. I7.
18. The Mentor Group Inc. — Award-
inning consul that specialize in
mentoring individuals as well as small
corporations. Get the edge! Please call
us at 404-936-8060 or circle no. 18.
19. Styles-on-Video — Become part of
a growing network of independent
Stvles-on-Video computer imaging
consultants/business owners. Proven
success. unlimited marketing poten-
tial. Circle no. 19.
20. Computer Associates Textor —
CA - Textor is the friendliest. easiest

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

120F.T.C.

Ab#

Enclosure C

word processor vou will ever meet.
For a limited time. it’s just 599 and
Grammatik is free! Call 1-800-225-5224
today for a free demo disk or circle
no. 20.

21.Blenheim —
The IFA Interna-
tional Franchise
Expo ("IFET) is the
world’s largest tranchise event. lea-
turing hundreds of franchise
opportunities. A recent Gallup Poll
shawed that 94 percent of fran-
chise owners are successlul. with

an average pre-tax profit ol
$124.290! The IFE is a three-day
event (Fridav 1o Sundayv) April 23
to 25 at the Washington. D.C..
Convention Center. Call 1-80(-[FE-
INFO (407-647-8521 outside L.S.
and Canada). Circle no. 21.

FREE

486 Computer
Color Monitor
Printer

You can earn $2,000 to $10,000 per month from your kitchen
table providing needed services for your community. Computer
FREE CBSI 486 SX Computer  Business Services needs individuals to run a computer from -
their home. You do not need to own or know how to run a computer. If you purchase our
software, we will give you a FREE 486 computer, VGA color monitor, 80 meg hard drive
and a printer. If you already have a computer, we will give you a discount. The industrial
revolution is over but the service revolution is just starting. Rather than setting up offices
all over the U.S., we are showing individuals and couples how to provide our services and
letting everyone involved in this service revolution reap the benefits. Our way of training
our new service providers and their success rate is the talk of the computer industry. Call or
write for a free 3 hour cassette tape and color literature and find out how easy it can be for
yOu to earn money in vour spare time and help your community.
Call toll-free: 1-800-343-8014, ext. 48
(in Indiana: 317-738-4415) Faxto: (317) 738-5827 Or Write:
COMPUTER BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.. CBSI PLAZA. STE. 48, SHERIDAN, INDIANA 46069

Sucsess Magazine, April
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EXHIBIT B

L.F.A. FRANCHISE EXPO SPOT

Taped from CNN Headline News, 3-31-93, 8 o'clock Hour

Audio

Announcer: How would you like to
own your own successful business
and earn over 124 thousand dollars a
year.

Well a recent independent survey
showed that franchise owners enjoy
an incredible 94 percent success rate
and an average income of more than
124 thousand dollars.

There are thousands of franchises to
choose from. With start-up costs
from less than 10 thousand dollars.
And you don't need any previous
experience.

If you're serious about running your
own business, call this tool free
number now to receive a free
brochure on franchise opportunities
and the world's largest franchise
€xpo.

Video

Super: OWN YOUR OWN
BUSINESS? EARN $124,000+ A
YEAR!

Super: Independent Survey 94%
Success Rate! Average Income
$124,290!  Poll Surveyed 994
Franchise Owners

Super Over Video: Call Now! 1-
800-IFE-INFO

Video: People talking to franchisors
at booths. Logo's and booths shown
of: Subway, Athlete's Foot, Burger
King, American Carpet Gallery,
Baskin Robbin, Las Vegas Discount
Golf and Tennis, Long John Silver
Super: International Franchise Expo
(top left screen) IFA Logo (top right
screen) APRIL 23, 24, 25, 1993
WASHINGTON, D.C. CONV. CTR.
World's Largest Franchise Expo! 1-
800-IFE-INFO

Open to the Public
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EXHIBIT C

Radio ad for International Franchise Expo - 60 secs

ARE YOU READY TO RUN YOUR OWN SUCCESSFUL BUSINESS?
WELL GET READY, BECAUSE THE WORLD'S LARGEST FRANCHISE
EXPO IS JUST AROUND THE CORNER.

VISIT THE INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE EXPO THIS FRIDAY,
SATURDAY AND SUNDAY AT THE WASHINGTON D.C. CONVENTION
CENTER AND FIND OUT HOW THOUSANDS HAVE BECOME
SUCCESSFUL BUSINESS OWNERS, EVEN WITH NO PREVIOUS
EXPERIENCE.

A RECENT POLL OF 994 FRANCHISE OWNERS SHOWED A 94% SUCCESS
RATE AND AN AVERAGE PRE-TAX INCOME OF OVER A HUNDRED AND
TWENTY FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS.

MCDONALDS, BURGER KING, MINEKE MUFFLERS, DRYCLEN USA AND
HUNDREDS MORE - THIS IS YOUR ONCE-A-YEAR OPPORTUNITY TO
MEET THEM ALL UNDER ONE ROOF AND FIND THE BUSINESS THAT
SUITS YOU.

IF YOU'RE SERIOUS ABOUT BEING IN BUSINESS FOR YOURSELF BUT
NOT BY YOURSELF, CALL ONE, EIGHT HUNDRED, FOUR THREE THREE.
FOUR SIX THREE SIX FOR DETAILS.

THE INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE EXPO, THIS FRIDAY, SATURDAY
AND SUNDAY AT THE WASHINGTON D.C. CONVENTION CENTER FROM
10AM UNTIL 5PM EACH DAY. CALL ONE EIGHT HUNDRED, FOUR
THREE THREE, FOUR SIX THREE SIX.

DON'T MISS IT - IT MAY HOLD THE KEY TO YOUR FUTURE!
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EXHIBIT D

D

PRINCETON. NEW JERSEY

Association Research Group
300 South 68¢A Street

Lincoln, Ngbraska 68510

(401} 489-8700

INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION

Washington, D.C.

FRANCHISE BUSINESS OWNER STUDY

January 1992

Prepared by

The Gallup Organization, Inc.
Princeton, New Jersey

Copyright T 1992 [nternanonal Franchise Associanion
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EXHIBIT D
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PRINCETON. NEW JERSEY

INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION
Washington, D.C.

1 ]
NATIONAL FRANCHISE OWNER STUDY
Executive Summary
January 1992
\ _
Prepared by
The Gallup Organization, Inc.
Princeton, New Jersey
Introduction:.

The Gallup Orzanization, Inc. of Princeton, New Jersey conducted market research for the
Intemational Franchise Association (TFA) of Washington, D.C. The overall purposg of this market
research was to determine, among franchise owness, their attitudes and opinions with regard to their
franchise-owning ¢xperience.

Methodology:
To accomplish the objectives of this study, Gallup interviewed, by telephone, a national sample
of 994 franchise owners across the continental United States during November and December 1991,

Stability of Results:

Al the 95% level of confidence, the maximum expected error range for a sample of 994 respon-
dents is +3.1%. Stated more simply, if 100 different samples of 994 individuals who were franchise
owners in the United States were chosen randomly from a national sample of franchise owners, 95 dmes
out of 100 the results obtained would vary no mcre than +3.1 percentage points from the results that
would be obtained if the entire franchise owner population were interviewed.
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National Franchise Owner Study

Major Findings:

1. Almost all (94%) of the respondents said that
overall, they considered their franchise operation
to be either very (47%) or somewhat (47%)
successful,

2. More than seven-tenths of the franchise owners
said that their franchise operation had either
exceeded or met their expectations with regard to
both their personal satisfaction in operating the
franchise (76%)and their overall satisfaction (73%).

3. The respondents’ high ratings of satisfaction
and success of their operation did not come with-
out hard work. More than eight-tenths of the
owners said their franchise operation had met most
of, or exceeded, their expectations with regard to
the number of hours they had to work (they had to
work more). In fact, a positive correlation existed
between the respondents’ overall satisfaction with
the franchise and their levels of active involve-
ment. The higher the respondents’ level of active
involvement on a day-to-day basis with the
franchise, the higher their level of satisfaction.

4. Three-fourths (75%) of the respondents said that
if given the same opportunity (knowing what they
know now) they would purchase or invest in this
same franchise business again. Respondents who
had income of $50,000 or more were particularly
likely to make such a re-investment (81%).
Although respondents with higher incomes tended
to be more likely to re-invest in the same franchise
(if given the same opportunity), it should be noted
that the majority of all respondent groups said they

would repeat the investment in the franchise again
if given the chance.

5. More than six-tenths (63%) of the owners said
they were more satisfied with their franchise than
with previous business experiences, while 23%
reported the same level of satisfaction.

6. Almost eight-tenths (79%) of the respondents
rated their relationship with their franchise or
company as being either excellent (39%) or good
(40%). Only 6% reported “poor” working rela-
tionships.

Table A
Sample Characterisitcs
(n=994)

Gender

Male 82%

Female 18%
1IFA Membership,

Member | %

Nonmember 29%

Ovwmership of Franchise Operation________

Sole Owners 63%

Multiple Owners 36%
Yearsin B

Mean 7.4 yrs.

Median 5.0 yrs.

Estimated Gross Income Before Taxes
Mean

$124,290.

INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION
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Overall Success
“Qverall, would you consider your franchise cperation to be
very successful. somewhat successful, somewhat unsuccessful or very unsuccessfui?"
(n=994)
2%
3%  Very Unsuccessful 1%
Somewhat Unsuccessful Don't Know/ Refused

47%
Very Successiul
47%
Somewhat Successful

« Almost all (94%) of the respondents said that overall, « Those respondents who tended 10 rate their franchise operation overall
they i their i ion (o be either as being more successful included:
very (47%) or somewhat (47%) successful. Only one in - respondents with incomes of $150,000 or more (67%)
fifty 2%) said they i their f i i - respondents who had been in business for 11 years or more (57%}
10 be very unsuccessful..

i Table B Table C

|

; Estimated Annual Gross Income Before Taxes Estimated Total Investment Cost

, (n=994) Including Franchise Fees and any Adcidonal Expenses

i (n=994)
Response % Total Response % Total
Less than 350,000 26% $50,000 or less 3%
$50.000 to less than $100.000 23% $50,001 to $100,000 19%
$100.000 10 less than $300,000 26% $100,001 to $300,000 15%
$300.000 or more 11% $300.001 or more 11%
Don't Know 2% Don’t Know 1%
Refused 12% Refused 14%

. Mean Cost $147,57

+ On average, respondents reporied their annual gross income,
before taxes, as a franchise owner was $124 290. Approximately - As would be expected. respondents reporied a wide variety of
one-half of thg rcs‘:nndcm: (48%) rcponcsi 3 gross income under amounts of total investment cost that they incurred for their
$100,000, while siightly more than one-third (36%) grossed over franchise. On average, however, respondents regoned investing
$100,000. $147.570.

INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION
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Expectations
Level of Expectations Being Met for Various Aspects of the Franchise

Exceeded Your

Met Most of Your d
Expectations

Expectations
0 20 40 60 80 100

Number of Hours
Personal Satisfaction in
Operating the Franchise

75%

Overall Satisfaction

73%

Level of Assistance
Provided by Franchisor

Profit

1093

A Given Another Chance...

“Knowing what you know now, if given the opportunity,
would you purchase or invest in this same franchise business again?”
(n=994)

3%
Don't Know/Retused

75%
“Yes®

* Those respondents who tended to be most likely to repeat their franchise investment included:

- respondents with annual gross incomes of $50,000 or more (81%)
- respondents who own two or more franchises (79%)
- respondents who had been in the business five years or less (77%)

INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION
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Comparison to Other Businesses/Jobs
Level of Overall Satisfaction as an Owner of a Franchise
Compared to Other Businesses Owned/Operated or Jobs Held
(n=994)

1%
Don't Know

13%
Less Satistied

About The Same 63%

More Satisfied

120 E.T.C.

« Relative 1o other businesses they have owned or operared, or other jobs they have held, 2 majority of responcents
(63%) reported they were more satisfied with the franchise operation. Only slightly more than one-tenth (13%) ©
the respondents said that previous businesses they had owned or operated or jobs they had held proved to be more

satisfying than their current position of owning a franchise.

American Workers/Franchise Owners

Would Repeat Would Repeat
Job Experience Franchise Experience
% Yes % Yes
100 1 100
5%
80
60 4

39%

American Workers* Franchise Owners
® Results are based on a national Gallup poll of n=783 Americans. 18 and older,
who held jobs, conducted in July, 1991, with 3 plus/minus 4% ervor range.

LI

@"- INTERNATIONAL FRANCHISE ASSOCIATION
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Relationship With Franchisor
Ratings of Working Relationships with Franchisor Company
(n=994)
6% 1%
poor  Don't Know/Refused
14% )

39%
Fair

Excellent

40%
Good

Approximately four-fifths (79%) of the respondents rated their relationship with the franchisor company as being
cither excellent (39%) or good (40%). Only 6% of the respondents rated this relationship as poor.

Rating of Economic Conditions :
"“As a business owner, compared to three years ago, do you think For More Il’l f()l"m ation
_encral econemic conditions are better, about *he same or worse?”

(n=994; % Towal) MPR Department
1%

Don't Know Internadonal Franchise Association
1350 New York Avenue, N.W.
Suite 900

Washington, D.C. 20005-4709
Phone: 202-628-8000

Fax: 202-628-0812

11%

Better

72%
Worse

The Imiernational Franchise Association, founded in
1960, is the oldest and largest association representing
franchisors in the world. IFA serves as a resource
Looking Ahead center for both current and prospective franchisors and

"As a business owner, in the next three years, do you think general | franchisees, as well as government and the media.
economic conditions will be beuer, about the same or worse?”
(n=994)

A%
10% Don't Know
Worse

28% ¥
About The
Same

59%
Benter

* x
APRIL 5-12,1992

B csone s i
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Complete Study

Introduction

The Gallup Organization, Inc. of Princeton, New Jersey conducted market
research for the International Franchise Association (IFA) of Washington, D.C.
The overall purpose of this market research was to determine franchise owners’
attitudes and opinions toward the franchise experience.

Methodology

To accomplish the objectives of this study, Gallup interviewed, by telephone,
a national sample of 994 franchise owners across the continental United States
during November and December 1991. Gallup utilized a multiple callback
methodology in which up to ten callbacks were made in the same telephone number
in order to eliminate bias in favor of those franchise owners easy to reach by
telephone. Gallup provided experience, professionally trained interviewers under
the exclusive employment of Gallup. All interviewers involved in this project were
briefed specifically as to the objectives and methodology of the study.

All field work was validated at the 10% level by supervisory callbacks.
Telephone interviews were monitored internally as part of the ongoing Gallup
process for evaluating interviewers. All completed questionnaires were edited and
coded independently as a quality control measure.

Sampling and Weighting Methodologies

The sample of franchise locations used for this survey was based on a two-
stage stratified probability design with clustering within units (franchisor systems)
drawn at the first stage.

An adequate master list, or "frame" of independent franchise locations did not
exist prior to the beginning of this project, al least not in a form that included the
relevant business locations and was at the same time practically useful. Available
sampling frames were either too inclusive (i.e., Dunn & Bradstreet's business
universe of over 7 million U.S. businesses, from which it was impossible to select
franchise location directly, and which therefore would have required extensive and
costly telephone screening), or incomplete and unacceptably biased from the point
of view of representing the universe of franchise locations.

In order to provide a sample of franchise locations that would provide both
acceptable coverage of the population and reasonable cost efficiencies, The Gallup
Organization hired Documents To Go, a Washington DC-based company to draw
the sample for a survey of franchise locations research.

Documents To Go was instructed to draw the sample in two phases. First,
Gallup requested a listing of active franchisors, to be as complete and accurate as
possible. The completeness and accuracy of this listing was secured, to the degree
that it is possible to do so, by the use of cross-checking of whatever sources were
available. The requested listing included the names of franchisors and number of
active franchise units for each (i.e., a count of the number of active franchise
locations that does not include company-owned locations). Documents To Go, in
response to that request, compiled a list of 1,723 U.S., franchisors and provided the
number of franchise locations in the U.S., according to the sources used for
compilation of the list. Gallup divided this list into five size of franchisor system
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groupings, or strata, as described in the first column of the table provided below.
A random sample of franchisors was selected within each stratum; the sample sizes
are provided in the second column of the table.

The second stage of sampling was carried out by Document To Go personnel,
who were instructed to draw systematic samples of franchise locations for each of
the 500 franchisors selected in stage 1. The number of franchise locations selected
within a franchise organization (the "cluster size") was dependent upon the size of
the organization; larger samples of franchise locations were draw from larger
organizations, as shown in the table below:

TABLE 1: SAMPLE DESIGN FOR FRANCHISE SURVEY

Size of Number of

Franchisor Franchisors Cluster
System Selected Size
1-2 80 1

3-10 135 2
11-100 150 6
101-1,000 100 20
1,001+ 35 50

The sample provided by Documents To Go was used to complete 994
interviews with franchises. The designs used to draw the sample of franchisees
requires weighting before it can be used to represent the population of franchisees.
The weighting was intended to correct two potential sources of disproportionality;
at the franchisor selection stage, and at the franchise location selection stage. First,
a weight was appended to each data record to correct for the fact that the probability
of selection at the second stage of sampling was not equal across fanchisors (i.e.,
50 franchise locations were selected whether the franchisor organization contained
1,001 or 3,000 locations). A second, independent adjustment was made to correct
for the fact that the probability of selection at the first stage of sampling was not
equal across franchisor size strata (i.e., franchisors had the same probability of
selection whether their organizations included 101 or 1,000 franchise locations).
A final poststratification adjustment was used to ensure conformity between the
weighted distribution of franchise locations by size stratum, and the known
distribution. The analysis provided in the tabulations and the report are based on
the sampling and weighting procedures described above, designed to allow
projections to be made from the survey data to the population of franchise owners.
Survey Instrument Development

Items included in the questionnaire were mutually agreed upon by The Gallup
Organization and IFA. IFA had responsibility for identifying question areas and
information desired. Gallup had responsibility for ensuring that all items that were
written were technically correct and without bias.

Stability of Results

At the 95% level of confidence, the maximum expected error range for a

sample of 994 respondents is +3.1%. Stated more simply, if 100 different samples
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of 994 individuals who were franchise owners in the United States were chosen
randomly from a national sample of franchise owners, 95 times out of 100 the
results obtained would vary no more than *3.1 percentage points from the results
that would be obtained if the entire franchise owner population were interviewed.
Reports Prepared

IFA has been provided a complete set of tabular results by frequency and
percentage for each of the major classifications. These tabular result should serve
as reference material and be consulted before important decisions are made. This
narrative report focuses on what are felt to be the most meaningful findings of this
study.

EXHIBITD
TABLE A
Sample Characteristics
(n=994)
Percent

Gender ‘

Male 82%

Female 18
IFA Membershi

Member 71%

Nonmember 29
Ownership of Franchise Operation

Sole owner 63%

Multiple owners 36

-~ The typical franchise owner had the following characteristics:

- male (82%)
- was an IFA member (71%)
- was the sole owner of a franchise (63%)
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"In total, how many years have you been in business as a franchise owner?"

TABLE 1

Number of Years as a Franchise Owner -- in Total

% IFA Membership
%
Total Member Nonmember

Number of Years (n=994) (n=593) (n=401)
Less than 1 year 5% 4% 9%
One 6 6 4
Two 11 10 i1
Three 15 17 11
Four 11 9 14
Five 8 9 7

5 years or less (Net) 56% 56% 56%
Six 6 6 7
Seven 3 2 5
Eight 5 5 5
Nine 3 3 4
Ten 3 3 4

6-10 years (Net) 20 18 25

11-15 years (Net) 12 11 . 13

16-20 years (Net) 6 7 3

21 years or more 6 8 2

Mean (years) 7.4 7.8 6.5

Median (years) 5.0 5.0 5.0

-~ More than one-half (56%) of the respondents said they had been a franchise
owner for five years or less. More than three-fourths (76%) had been in the
business as a franchise owner for ten years or less.

-~ On average, respondents said they had been in the business as a franchise
owner for slightly more than seven years (7.4). IFA members (7.8 years)
tended to have been members slightly longer than their nonmember (6.5)
counterparts.
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"In total, how many years have you been in business as a franchise owner for this

parti

cular business?"

Number of Years as a Franchise Owner -
This Particular Business

TABLE 2

% IFA Membership
%
Total Member Nonmember
Number of Years (n=994) (n=593) (n=401)
Less than 1 year 7% 6% 9%
One 6 7 4
Two 12 12 12
Three 16 17 13
Four 11 10 13
Five 8 9 7
5 years or less (Net)  60% 60% 59%
Six 6 6 7
Seven 4 3 6
Eight 4 5 4
Nine 3 2 4
Ten 3 3 4
6-10 years (Net) 21 19 26
11-15 years (Net) 10 9 13
16-20 years (Net) 4 5 2
21 years or more 6 8 1
Mean (years) 6.8 7.1 5.9
Median (years) 4.0 4.0 4.0

Six-tenths (60%) of the respondents said they had been franchise owner of a
particular business they were being interviewed about for five years or less.
Approximately eight-tenths (81%) had been owners of that business for ten

years or less.

On average, respondents had been owners of that particular business for
approximately seven (6.8) years.
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"OVERALL, WOULD YOU CONSIDER YOUR FRANCHISE OPERATION
TO BE VERY SUCCESSFUL, SOMEWHAT SUCCESSFUL,
SOMEWHAT UNSUCCESSFUL OR VERY UNSUCCESSFUL?"
(n=994)

IVERV SUCCESSFUL--47%

5SS
& SXf~ YERY UNSUCCESSFUL--2%

W‘:‘. 23— DON'T KNOW/REFUSED-- 1%

SW UNBUCCESSFUL--3%

SW SUCCESSFUL--47%

FIGURE 1

-~ Almost all (94%) of the respondents said that overall, they considered their
franchise operation to be either very (47%) or somewhat (47%) successful.
Only one in fifty (2%) said they considered their franchise operation to be very
unsuccessful.
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“Overall would you consider your franchise operation to be very successful,
somewhat successful, somewhat unsuccessful, or very unsuccessful?"

TABLE 3
Overall Success of Franchise -- By respondent Group
% very/
% Very % Somewhat  Somewhat
Successful Successful Successful

Total (n=994) 47% 47% 95%
IFA Membership

Member (n=593) 50% 44% 95%

Nonmember (n=401) 39 55 94
Years in Business

5 years or less (n=593) 43% 49% 93%

6-10 years (n=204) 46 51 97

11 years or more (n=197) 57 40 97
Income

Under $50,000 (n=271) 21% 52% 88%

$50,000 to less than

$150,000 (n=347) 52 46 98

$150,000 or more (n=233) 67 29 96
Number of Franchises Owned

One only (n=613) 43% 50% 93%

Two or more (n=376) 53 44 97
Number of Owners for this Franchise

Sole owner (n=662) 49% 46% 96%

Multiple owner (n=329) 44 49 93

-~ Those respondents who tended to rate their franchise operation overall as being
more successful included:

- respondents with incomes of $150,000 or more (67%)

- respondents who had been in business for 11 years or more (57%)
- respondents who own two or more franchises (53%)

- IFA member (50% very satisfied)

- respondents who were the sole owner of a franchise (49%)
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"How involved are you with your franchise operation? Would you say you are

actively involved on a day-to-day basis, moderately involved, but not on a day-to-
day basis, rarely involved, or not involved?”

TABLE 4
Level of Involvement in Franchise Operation

Owner satisfaction compared
to other jobs, business owned

%More % % Less
% Total Satisfied  Same Satisfied
Response (n=994) (n=575) (n=243) _(n=143)
Actively involved 85% 91% 77% 1%
Moderately Involved 11 8 8 15
Rarely involved 3 1 1 7
Not involved 1 0 * 4
Mean** 3.80 3.89 3.69 3.58

* Less than 1% mention
** Actively involved=4, moderately involved=3, rarely involved=2, not involved=1

-~ Approximately five-sixths (85%) of the respondents said they were actively
involved with their franchise on a day-to-day basis. Almost all (96%) of the
respondents said they were either actively or moderately involved in their
business’ day-to-day operations.

-- A positive correlation existed between the respondents’ overall satisfaction
with the franchise and their levels of involvement. The higher the respondents'
level of satisfaction with the job the higher their level of involvement on a day-
to-day basis.
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"Please tell me if your franchise operation has exceeded your expectations, met
most of your expectations, met some of your expectations, or not met your

expectations with regard to the following? How about regarding ( )
TABLE 5
Level of Expectations Being Met for
Various Aspects of the Franchise
(n=994)
Personal
Level of satisfaction
assistance in
Numberof provided operating Overall
hourshad by the satis-
Response Profit towork franchisor franchise faction
Exceeded your expectations 17% 25% 18% 27% 22%
Met most of your
expectations 39 57 45 48 51
Exceeded/met most of
your expectations 55 82 63 76 73
Met some of your
expectations 27 12 25 18 20
Did not meet your
expectations 16 4 11 6 6
Don't know/refused 2 2 1 1 1
Mean* 2.57 3.06 271 2.98 2.90

*5=exceeded your expectations, ... 1=did not meet your expectations

--  For all five of the areas tested (profit, number of hours had to work, level of
assistance provided by franchisor, personal satisfaction in operating the
franchise, overall satisfaction), more than one-half of the respondents said their
experiences with their franchise operation had either exceeded or met most of
their expectations.

-- Respondents particularly felt their expectations had been met or exceeded for
the number of hours they had to work (they had to work more than they
expected) their personal satisfaction in operating the franchise (76%), and their
overall satisfaction with the franchise (73%).
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LEVEL OF EXPECTATIONS BEING MET
FOR VARIOUS ASPECTS OF THE FRANCHISE

e MET MOST OF YOUR
NUMBER OF HOURS s &::.:.g:q.x..g' EXPECTATIONS

‘.‘o.‘ EXCEEDED YOUR
Ly EXPECTATIONS
PERSONAL

SATISFACTION

IN OPERATING
THE FRANCHISE [ SRR ) 7e%
OVERALL SATISFACTION LS 7a%
LEVEL OF
ASSISTANCE
PROVIDED BY

" i : [ N

| — I
0% 20% 40% 80% 0% 100%

FIGURE 2
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"As the owner of the franchise, would you estimate that your annual gross income,
before taxes, is over or under $100,000?"

TABLE 6
Estimated Annual Gross Income Before Taxes
(n=994)
% who gave a
specific response
(excludes

Response % Total don't know/refused)
Less than $25,000 9% 11%
$25,000 to less than $50,000 16 19

Less than $50,000 26% 30%

$50,000 to less than

$100,000 23% 27%

$100,000 to less than $150,000 12 14
$150,000 to less than $200,000 7 9
$200,000 to less than $300,000 6 7

$100,000 to less than

$300,000 26% 30%

$300,000 or more 11% 13%
Don't know 2
Refused 12

Mean $124,290

-~ On average, respondents reported their annual gross income, before taxes, as
a franchise owner was $124,290. Approximately one-half of the respondents
(48%) reported a gross income under $100,000, while slightly more than one-
third (36%) grossed over $100,000.
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$112,430

$138,820

5 ORLESS (n:593)

ESTIMATED ANNUAL GROSS INCOME BEFORE TAXES

$142,760

6-10 (ns204)

YEARS IN BUSINESS

FIGURE 3

11 OR MORE (n=197)

1107

-- A positive correlation existed between the respondents’ number of years in the
franchise business and their estimated annual gross income. The longer the
respondents had been in business, the higher was their average reported annual
gross income. Respondents who owned two or more franchises tended to
report higher gross incomes than did their couterparts who owned only a single
franchise.
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"KNOWING WHAT YOU KNOW NOW, IF GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY,
WOULD YOU PURCHASE OR INVEST IN THIS SAME
FRANCHISE BUSINESS AGAIN?"

(n=994)

YES--75%

SRR~ DON'T KNOW /REFUSED-- %

FIGURE &

--  Three-fourths of the respondents (75%) said that knowing what they know
now, if given the opportunity, they would purchase or invest in the same
franchise business again. Less than one-fourth (22%) indicated they would not
repeat such a purchase or investment decision again.
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"Knowing what you know now, if given the opportunity, would you purchase or
invest in this same franchise business again?"

TABLE 7
Incidence of Investing in Same Franchise
Business Again -- By Respondent Group

% Yes

Total (n=994) 75%
IFA Membership

Member (n=593) 75%

Nonmember (n=401) 76
Years in Business

5 years or less (n=593) T7%

6-10 years (n=204) 76

11 years or more (n=197) 72
Income

Under $50,000 (n=271) 63%

$50,000 to less than $150,000 (n=347) 81

$150,000 or more (n=233) 81
Number of Franchises Owned

One only (n=613) 72%

Two or more (n=376) 79
Number of Owners for this Franchise

Sole owner (n=662) 76%

Multiple owners (n=329) 74

-- Those respondents who tended to be most likely to repeat their franchise
investment included:

- respondents with annual gross incomes of $50,000 or more (81%)
- respondents who own two or more franchises (79%)
- respondents who had been in the business five years or less (77%)

-- It should be noted that the majority of all respondents said they would repeat
the investment in the franchise again if given the chance.
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"When you first purchased or invested in this franchise operation, what was the
total investment cost, including franchise fees and any additional expenses that you
incurred?”

TABLE 8
Estimated Total Investment Cost, Including
Franchise Fees and any Additional Expenses
That Were Incurred

(n=994)
% of those who gave a
specific answer
(excludes

Response % Total don't know/refused)
$10,000 or less 8% 10%
$10,001-$20,000 8 10
$20,001-$30,000 7 9
$30,001-$40,000 6 7
$40,001-$50,000 7 9

$50,000 or less 37% 45%
$50,001-$60,000 2 3
$60,001-$70,000 2 2
$70,001-$80,000 7 8
$80,001-3$90,000 2 2
$90,001-$100,000 7 8

$50,001 to $100,000 19% 23%
$100,001-$200,000 9 12
$200,001-$300,000 5 6

$100,001-$300,000 15% 18%
$300,001-$400,000 3 4
$400,001-$500,000 1 2
$500,001 or more 6 7

300,001 or more 11% 13%
Don't know 4 -
Refused 14 -

Mean $147,570

-~ As would be expected, respondents reported a wide variety of amounts of total
investment cost that they incurred for their franchise. On average, however,
repondents reported investing $147,570.
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“Considering other businesses that you have owned and operated, or other jobs that
you have held, would you say that you have worked more hours, about the same
amount of hours, or less hours as the owner of this franchise?"

TABLE 9
Number of Hours Worked as Owner of
Franchhise Compared to Other Businesses
Owned/Operated or Jobs Held

% IFA Membership
% Total Member Nonmember
(n=994) (n=593) (n-401)

More hours 51% 51% 52%
About the same 30 31 28
Less hours 15 15 13
Not applicable/no other

job/business 3 3 4

Net (more hours minus
less hours) 37% 36% 39%

-~ Compared to other businesses they have owned or operated or other jobs they
have held, respondents tended to report they were working more hours (51%)
as owner of the franchise operation. This was particularly true of respondents
who owned multiple franchises. Fifty-seven percent (57%) of these responents
said they worked more hours than they did compare to their previous work
history.
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"Relative to other businesses that you have owned or operated, or other jobs you

have held, would you say you are more satisfied, have about the same level of
satisfaction, or are less satisfied overall with being the owner of this franchise?"

TABLE 10
Level of Overall Satisfaction as Owner of
Franchise Compared to Other business
Owned/Operated of Jobs Held

% IFA Membership
% Total Member Nonmember
Response (n=994) (n-593) (n=401)
More satisfied 63% 65% 58%
About the same level 23 20 28
Less satisfied 13 14 13
Don't know 1 1 1
Net (more satisfied minus
less satisfied 49% 51% 44%

-- Relative to other businesses they have onwed or operated, or other jobs they
have held, a majority of respondents (63%) reported they were more satisfied
with the franchise operation. Only slightly more than one-tenth (13%) of the
respondents said that previous businesses they had owned or operated or jobs
they had held proved to be more satisfying than their current position of
owning a franchise.
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LEVEL OF OVERALL SATISFACTION AS OWNER OF FRANCHISE
COMPARED TO OTHER BUSINESSES OWNED/OPERATED

OR JOBS HELD
(n=994)

MORE SATISFIED--63%

4= DON'T KNOW-- 1%

LESS SATISFIED--13%

ABOUT THE SAME--23%

FIGURE 4§
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"Would you rate your working relationship with the franchisor company as being
excellent, good, fair or poor?"

TABLE 11
Ratings of Working Relationships
With Franchisor Company
% JFA Membershi

% Total Member  Nonmember
Response (n=994) (n=593) (n=401)
Excellent 39% 38% 43%
Good 40 40 40
Fair 14 15 12
Poor 6 7 6

Mean* 3.13 3.10 3.20

-- Approximately four-fifths (79%) of the respondents rated their relationship
with the franchisor company as being either excellent (39%) or good (40%).
Only 6% of the respondents rated their relationship as poor.
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RATINGS OF WORKING RELATIONSHIPS
‘ WITH FRANCHISOR COMPANY
(n=994)

EXCELLENT--39%

GOO00--40%

FAIR-+14%

FIGURE 8
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®AS A BUSINESS OWNER, COMPARED TO THREE YEARS AGO,
DO YOU THINK GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS ARE
BETTER, ABOUT THE SAME OR WORSE?"
(n=994; % TOTAL)

ABOUT THE SAME--16%

y _BETTER--11%4

—DON'T KNOW=-- 1%

WORSE--

FIGURE 7

--  More than seven-tenths (72%) of the respondents said that compared to three
years ago, they felt the general economic conditions were worse now. Only
one-tenth (11%) considered economic conditions better than they were three
years ago for business owners.



BLENHEIM EXPOSITIONS, INC. 1117
1078 Complaint

EXHIBITD

"AS A BUSINESS OWNER, IN THE NEXT THREE YEARS,
DO YOU THINK GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS WILL BE
BETTER, ABOUT THE SAME OR WORSE?"
(n=994)

BETTER--59%
\

TR N
Ay

9,000, 4.0 00w
SXRKIRKKKK
QR
0.0.0.0.0.0.0
* 0.0.0.0.0‘0‘0

ABOUT THE SAME--28Y.

FIGURE 8

- Although respondents considered economic conditions to be worse over the
last three years, as business owners in the next three years, the majority (59%)
believed that general economic conditions witll be better.
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EXHIBIT D

"How many total franchises do you own or have investments in?"

TABLE 12
Number of Franchises Own or Invest In

% IFA Membership
% Total Member Nonmember
Response (n=994) (n=593) (n=401)
One 54% 51% 62%
Two 17 17 17
Three 12 14 7
Four 3 4 2
Five 4 4 4
Six or more 10 9 8
Mean 2.96 2.89 3.13
Median 1.00 1.00 1.00

-~ Although a majority of respondents (54%) reported they owned only one
franchise, on average, respondents reported owning or investing in three (2.96)
franchises.
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EXHIBITD
SURVEY INSTRUMENT
.
Fap )
L p AB80C, TFA10455
PV
» - NO ] 359

AC94S
Project Registration 20302200 X APPROVED BY CLIENT

INTERNATIONAL FPRANCHISBE
ABSOCIATION (ITA)

The Gallup Organization, Inc. INTERVIEWED BY

DATE.
Copyright, The Gallup Organizatien, Inc.

Cal Martin/Scott Ahlstrand/
Phil Fitzpatric, Specwriter

November, 1991 n=1,000
I.D.%:
-0 (1-
€)
*+AREA CODE AND TELEPHONE NUMBER: ( ) e
(32 - 41)
**INTERVIEW TIME: — ———
(42) (43)
Dl. GENDER: de_oply; do no
Male 2 Female 16 (44)
D2. NAME OF BUSINESS: de_fxef
NAME: Ve s
17.10
(441 - 480)
D3. GROUP: dcede from call recoprd cazd)
18.%50

(513) (S514) (515)

D4.

IFA MEMBER/NON-MEMBER: (19 he coded sfter whole study

42 _complets)

Member
Non-member A8 (512)
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EXHIBITD
a_O apd o (-]
Hello, this is with The Gallup
Organization in Lincoln, Nebraska. Today, we are

conducting a very brief study with franchise owners
across the United States regarding their experiences with
franchises.

120 F.T.C.

In total, how many years have you been in business as a
tranchise owner? (Open ended and code actyal number of

Years)
96 96+ 98  (DK)
97 less than 1 year 99 (Refused)

In total, how many years have you been in business as a
franchise owner for this particular business? (Open

ended and code actyal pumber of years)

96 96+ 98  (DK)
97 Less than 1 year 99 (Refused)

Overall, would you consider your franchise operation to
be very ful, hat ful, hat
unsuccessful, or very unsuccessful?

Very successful
Somevhat successful
Somewhat unsuccessful
Very unsuccassful
(DK)

{Refused)

LYY TENY

How involved are you with your franchise operation?
Would you say you are actively involved on a day-to-day
basis, moderately involved, but not on a day-to-day
basis, rarely involved, or not involved?

Activaly involved
Moderately involved
Rarely involved
Not involved

(DK)

(Refused)

amasuvnp

1.10

(412) (413)

2.10
(414) (415)

_3._(416)

4 __(417)
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EXHIBIT D

Please tell me if your franchise operation has exceeded
(E) your expectations, met most (MM) of your expecta-
tions, met some (MS) of your expectations, or not met
(NM) your expectations with regard to the following? How

about regarding (read and rotate A-EY?
E_ MM MS MM (DK} (RF}
A. Profit 1 2 3 4 H 6

B. The .number of hours
you have had to work
with your franchise
operation 12 3 4 5 6

C. The level of assistance
provided by your
franchisor 1- 2 3 4 5 6

D. Personal satisfaction
in operating the
franchise 1 2 3 4 5 6

(U]
L3

E. Overall satisfaction 1 2 3 4

As the owner of the franchise, would you estimate that
your annual gross income, before taxes, is over or under
$100,0007

(I£ *Undex*, asaX;) 1Is it over or under $50,000

AIZ "Under”, ask:) Is it over or under $25,000

{IL “overn, asx;) Is it over or under $150,0007
AIf “Over", ask:;) 1Is it over or under $200,0007?
AIL "Over", agk:) Is it over or under $300,000?

Less than $25,000
$25,000 to $49,999
$50,000 to $99,999
$100,000 to $149,999
$150,000 to $199,999
$200,000 to $299,999
$300,000 or mors
(DK)

(Refused)

VCOIAMAEVN

Knowing what you know now, if given the opportunity,
wvould you purchase or invest in this same franchise
business again?

by 2 J 4
Yes No (DK) (RF)

When you first purchased or invested in this franchise

operation, what was the total investdent cost, including

franchise fees and any additional expenses that you

incurred? (Open ended and code actua] amount) {NOTZ:

IL __'"upsure®, oprobe for approximation) {NOTE® _ TO
v H (-} T _8ante [ 1 b

999997 $999,997+
999998 {DK)
999999 (Refused)

(424) (425) (426) (427)

1121

5.10(418)

~5.20(419)
—2.30(420)

5.40(421)
5.50(422)

S (53)

7 (423)

8.10

(428) (429)



1122

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,
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EXHIBITD

Considering other businesses that you have owned and
operated, or other jobs that ycu have held, would you say
that you have worked more hours, about the sampe amount of
hours, or less hours as the owner of this franchise?

1 More hours
2 About the same (Continue)
3 Less hours

4 (NA/No other job or business) = (8kip to #11)
H (DK)
6 (Refused) (Continue)

{Xf codes wi-3n, wsw or wev ip 4§49, ask:) Relative to
other businesses that you have owned or operated, or
other jobs you have hald, would you say you are nore
satisfied, have about the same lavel of satisfaction, or
are less satisfied overall with being the owner of this
franchise?

1 More satisfied

2 About the same level of satisfaction
3 Less satisfied

4 (DK)

5 (Refused)

Would you rate your working relationship with the
franchisor company as being excellent, good, fair, or
poor?

1 Excellent 4 Poer
2 Good H (DK)
3 Fair 6 (Refused)

As a business owner, compared to three years ago, do you
think general economic conditions are better, about the
same, or wvarsa?

1 Better 4 {DK)
2 About tha sane S (Refused)
3 Worse

AS a business cwner, in the next thres years, do you
think general economic conditions will be bettsr, about
the sarme, or wvorse?

1 Better 4 (DK)
2 About the sanmae 5 (Rafusad)
3 Worse

How many total franchises do you own or have investxents

in? (OCpen ended and code actual number)
97 97+
98  (DK)

99 (Rafused)

120F.T.C.

9 (430)

19 (431)

11 (432)

A2 (433)

11 (434)

14.10

(435) (436)
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EXHIBITD

15. Are you the sole owner of this franchise operation, or
are there multiple owners?

1 Sole owner 3 (DK)
2 Multiple owners 4 (Refused)

(VALIDATS PEONE NUMBER AND TEANX RESPONDENT)

INTERVIEWER I.D.#

{241) (242) (243) (2449)

vkt\assoc\ifa.111

1S (437)

1123
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DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondent named in the caption
hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a
copy of a draft complaint which the Bureau of Consumer Protection
proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration and
which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with
violations of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by
respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft
of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such
complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission's rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that it had reason to believe that the respondent
has violated the said Act, and that complaint should issue stating its
charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed
consent agreement and placed such agreement on the public record
for a period of sixty (60) days, and having duly considered the
comments filed thereafter by interested persons pursuant to Section
2.34 of its Rules, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues
its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional findings and enters
the following order:

1. Respondent Blenheim Expositions, Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Florida, with its office and principal place of
business located at 1133 Louisiana Avenue, Suite 210, Winter Park,
Florida.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.
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ORDER

It is ordered, That respondent, Blenheim Expositions, Inc., a
corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers; and
respondent's agents, representatives and employees, directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, affiliate, division or other
device, in connection with the advertising, promotion, or marketing
of franchise shows in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease and
desist from misrepresenting, in any manner, directly or by
implication, the existence, purpose, sample, contents, validity, results,
conclusions or interpretations of any survey, poll, test, report or
study.

IL.

It is further ordered, That respondent, Blenheim Expositions,
Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers; and
respondent's agents, representatives and employees, directly or
through any corporation, subsidiary, affiliate, division or other
device, in connection with the advertising, promotion, marketing, or
conducting of franchise shows in or affecting commerce, as
"commerce"” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do
forthwith cease and desist from representing in any manner, directly
or by implication:

A. The sales, income, or profits that current or prospective
franchise owners have earned or can or will earn; or

B. The chances of success or success rates that franchise owners
have enjoyed or can or will enjoy,

unless, at the time of making such representation, respondent
possesses and relies upon competent and reliable evidence, which
when appropriate must be competent and reliable scientific evidence,
that substantiates the representation. For purposes of this order,
“competent and reliable scientific evidence" shall mean analyses,
research, surveys, polls, reports, studies or other evidence based on
the expertise of professionals in the relevant area, that have been
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conducted and evaluated in an objective manner by persons qualified
to do so, using procedures generally accepted in the profession to
yield accurate and reliable results.

III.

It is further ordered, That respondent, Blenheim Expositions,
Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers, for a
period of five (5) years after the date of entry of this order, shall
distribute, at each franchise show it promotes, directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, affiliate, division or other device, to at least
500 persons attending such show, or to each person attending such
show if the total number of such persons is fewer than 500, a
brochure entitled, "A Consumer Guide To Buying A Franchise,"
provided to the respondent by the Federal Trade Commission. The
Commission shall provide to the respondent one camera-ready copy
of the brochure, and the respondent is responsible for the printing,
and printing costs, of the brochure for distribution at the franchise
shows. The brochures distributed by respondent pursuant to this
paragraph shall be reproduced in a format substantially similar to the
original format, as provided by the Federal Trade Commission;
provided, however, that reproduction in a black and white format
shall be deemed substantially similar to the original for purposes of
this paragraph. Respondent may revise the text of said brochure or
substitute another similar document only after submitting said
revision or substitution to staff of the Commission, and receiving
written approval thereof.

IVv.

It is further ordered, That respondent, Blenheim Expositions,
Inc., a corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers, shall:

A. For a period of five (5) years after the date of the last
dissemination by or on behalf of the respondent of any representation
covered by this order, maintain and upon request make available to
the Federal Trade Commission or its staff for inspection and copying:

1. All advertisements and promotional materials setting forth such
representation;
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2. All polls, surveys, reports, studies, or other documents and
materials relied upon by the respondent to substantiate such
representation; and

3. All polls, surveys, reports, studies, or other documents and
materials (such as correspondence) in the respondent’s possession or
control that contradict, qualify, or call into question such
representation or the basis upon which the respondent relied for such
representation;

B. For a period of five (5) years after the date of their creation,
maintain and upon request make available to the Federal Trade
Commission or its staff for inspection and copying such other
documents and materials as shall demonstrate full compliance with
this order.

V.

It is further ordered, That, within thirty (30) days after service of
this order upon it, respondent, Blenheim Expositions, Inc., its
successors and assigns shall distribute a copy of this order to each of
its operating divisions and to each of its officers, agents,
representatives, or employees engaged in the preparation or
placement of advertisements, promotional materials, or other such
sales materials covered by this order.

VL

It is further ordered, That respondent, Blenheim Expositions, Inc.,
its successors and assigns shall notify the Commission at least thirty
(30) days prior to any proposed change in said corporation such as a
dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, or
any other change in the corporation which may affect compliance
obligations under this order.

VIL
It is further ordered, That this order will terminate twenty years

from the date of its issuance, or twenty years from the most recent
date that the United States or the Federal Trade Commission files a



1128 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Decision and Order 120F.T.C.

complaint (with or without an accompanying consent decree) in
federal court alleging any violation of the order, whichever comes
later; provided, however, that the filing of such a complaint will not
affect the duration of:

A. Any paragraph in this order that terminates in less than twenty
years;

B. This order's application to any respondent that is not named as
a defendant in such complaint; and

C. This order if such complaint is filed after the order has
terminated pursuant to this paragraph.

Provided further, that if such complaint is dismissed or a federal court
rules that the respondent did not violate any provision of the order,
and the dismissal or ruling is either not appealed or upheld on appeal,
then the order will terminate according to this paragraph as though
the complaint was never filed, except that the order will not terminate
between the date such complaint is filed and the later of the deadline
for appealing such dismissal or ruling and the date such dismissal or
ruling is upheld on appeal.

VIIL

It is further ordered, That respondent, Blenheim Expositions,
Inc., shall, within sixty (60) days after service of this order upon it,
and at such other times as the Commission may require, file with the
Commission a report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner
and form in which it has complied with this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

PHILLIPS PETROLEUM COMPANY, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., INREGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
SEC.7OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket C-3634. Complaint, Dec. 28, 1995--Decision, Dec. 28, 1995

This consent order requires, among other things, Phillips Petroleum Company, an
Oklahoma-based corporation, to modify the acquisition agreement so that 830
specified miles of pipe and related gas gathering assets within the Panhandle
counties are not included in the sale of Enron assets to Phillips. The consent
order also requires Phillips, for 10 years, to notify the Commission before it
acquires more than five miles of gas gathering pipeline located within the
Panhandle counties from any one person during any 18-month period; and
requires Enron, for 10 years, to notify the Commission before it can sell any
of the 830 miles of pipeline assets excluded from the challenged deal to
Phillips or to Maxus Energy Corporation.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ronald B. Rowe and Frank Lipson.

For the respondents: William J. Kolasky, Wilmer, Cutler &
Pickering, Washington, D.C. Neil W. Imus, Vinson & Elkins,
Washington, D.C.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), having reason
to believe that respondent Phillips Petroleum ("Phillips") Company,
through its subsidiary GPM Gas Corporation ("GPM"), is subject to
the jurisdiction of the Commission and Phillips' proposed acquisition
of the outstanding voting securities of Enron Anadarko Gathering
Company and Transwestern Anadarko Gathering Company, two
subsidiaries of Enron Corp. ("Enron") is in violation of Section 7 of
the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), as amended, 15 U.S.C
45, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint
pursuant to Section 11 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 21,



1130 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS

Complaint 120F.T.C.

and Section 5(b) of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45(b),
stating its charges as follows:

1. PHILLIPS

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Phillips is a corporation organized,
existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of business at
Phillips Building, Bartlesville, Oklahoma.

PAR. 2. Respondent Phillips is, and at and all times relevant
herein has been, engaged in commerce as "commerce" is defined in
Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a
corporation whose business is in or affects commerce as "commerce"
is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44.

II. ENRON

PAR. 3. Respondent Enron is a corporation organized, existing,
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its office and principal place of business at 1400
Smith Street, Houston, Texas.

PAR. 4. Enron is, and at all times relevant herein has been,
engaged in commerce, as "commerce"” is defined in Section 1 of the
Clayton Act, as amended 15 U.S.C. 12, and is a corporation whose
business is in or affects commerce, as "commerce" is defined in
Section 4 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 44.

III. THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

PAR. 5. Respondent Phillips through its subsidiary GPM entered
into two agreements with respondent Enron Corp. through its
subsidiaries, Enron Operations Corp. and Transwestern Gathering
Company, to acquire the outstanding voting securities of Enron
Anadarko Gathering Company and Transwestern Anadarko
Gathering Company, which will own certain gas gathering assets
currently owned by Transwestern Gathering Company and Northern
Natural Gas Company, two subsidiaries of respondent Enron.
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IV. THE RELEVANT MARKETS

PAR. 6. The relevant line of commerce in which to analyze the
effects of the merger is natural gas gathering services or the
transportation, for the respondents’ own account or for other persons,
of natural gas from the wellhead or producing area to a natural gas
transmission pipeline or a natural gas processing plant.

PAR. 7. The relevant geographic market in which to analyze the
effects of the merger includes the Texas counties of Hansford,
Ochiltree, and Lipscomb and all portions of Beaver County,
Oklahoma, within ten miles of the Texas border.

PAR. 8. The relevant line of commerce is highly concentrated in
the relevant geographic market. Respondents Phillips and Enron are
the only competitive providers of natural gas gathering services in
many areas of the relevant market. Respondents will have the largest
market share in the relevant line of commerce throughout the relevant
geographic market.

PAR. 9. Respondent Phillips is an actual and potential competitor
of Enron in the relevant line of commerce in the relevant geographic
market.

PAR. 10. Timely and effective entry in the relevant line of
commerce in the relevant geographic market is unlikely.

V. EFFECTS OF THE MERGER

PAR. 11. The effects of the merger may be substantially to lessen
competition or to tend to create a monopoly in the relevant markets
in the following ways, among others:

a. Actual and potential competition between Phillips and Enron
to provide natural gas gathering services to existing natural gas wells
will be eliminated,;

b. Actual and potential competition between Phillips and Enron
to provide natural gas gathering services for new natural gas wells
will be eliminated;

c. The respondents are likely to exact anticompetitive price
increases from producers in the relevant geographic market for
performance of natural gas gathering services in the relevant
geographic market; and
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d. Producers may be less likely to do exploratory and
developmental drilling for new natural gas in the relevant geographic
market than prior to the merger.

VI. VIOLATIONS CHARGED

PAR. 12. The merger agreement described in paragraph five
constitutes a violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. 45.

PAR. 13. The merger described in paragraph five, if
consummated, would constitute a violation of Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and Section 5 of the FTC
Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), having initiated
an investigation of the proposed acquisition by Phillips Petroleum
Company ("Phillips"), through its subsidiary GPM Gas Corporation
("GPM"), of the outstanding voting securities of Enron Anadarko
Gathering Company and Transwestern Anadarko Gathering
Company, two subsidiaries of Enron Corp. ("Enron"), that will own
certain gas gathering assets currently owned by Transwestern
Pipeline Company ("Transwestern") and Northern Natural Gas
Company ("Northern Natural"), two other subsidiaries of Enron, and
Phillips and Enron, hereinafter sometimes referred to as
"respondents,” having been furnished with a copy of a draft
complaint that the Bureau of Competition proposed to present to the
Commission for its consideration, and which, if issued by the
Commission, would charge respondents with violations of the
Clayton Act and Federal Trade Commission Act;

Respondents, their attorneys, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order,
an admission by respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in
the aforesaid draft complaint, a statement that the signing of said
agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in
such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission's Rules; and






